Public Document Pack

Oldham

Council

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL

Regulatory Committee
Agenda
Date Thursday 29 September 2022
Time 5.30 pm
Venue Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL
Notes 1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires any advice on

ltem No

any item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect
his/her ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul
Entwistle or Constitutional Services in advance of the meeting.

2. CONTACT OFFICER for this Agenda is Constitutional Services Tel. 0161
770 5151 or email Constitutional.Services@oldham.gov.uk

3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS — Any member of the public wishing to ask a
guestion at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the
question is submitted to the Contact officer by 12 Noon on Monday, 26
September 2022.

4. FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may record
/ film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and the press
are not lawfully excluded. Any member of the public who attends a meeting
and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional Services Officer
who will instruct that they are not included in the filming.

Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private
meeting is held.

Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law
including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection
Act and the law on public order offences.

Please also note the Public attendance Protocol on the Council’'s Website

https://www.oldham.gov.uk/homepage/1449/attending council meetings

MEMBERSHIP OF THE TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL IS AS
FOLLOWS:

Councillors C. Gloster (Vice-Chair), Salamat, Woodvine, S Bashforth (Chair)
and Ahmad


mailto:Constitutional.Services@oldham.gov.uk
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/homepage/1449/attending_council_meetings

Oldham

Council

Apologies For Absence

Urgent Business

Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair
Declarations of Interest

To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at
the meeting.

Public Question Time

To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution.

Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 2)
The Minutes of the meeting held on 28™ July 2022 are attached for approval.

S257 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 — Diversion of Definitive Footpaths 8
& 176 Oldham, at Snipe Clough, Oldham, and S53A — Wildlife and Countryside
Act 1981 (Pages 3 - 16)

To seek approval to the making of a Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map
and Statement Modification Order for Footpaths 8 & 176 Oldham as detailed in
the report.



Present:

Agenda Iltem 5

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER PANEL
28/07/2022 at 5.30 pm

Oldham
Councillor S Bashforth (Chair) Council

Councillors C. Gloster (Vice-Chair), Salamat and Woodvine

Also in Attendance:

Alan Evans Group Solicitor

Kaidy McCann Constitutional Services
Laila Chowdhury Constitutional Services
Sarah Robinson Highways & Engineering

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ahmad.

URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of urgent business received.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest received.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
There were no public questions received.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 16" June
2022 be approved as a correct record.

SMALLBROOK ROAD, SHAW - OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC
REGULATION ORDER

The Panel gave consideration to a report regarding objections
received to the introduction of prohibitive waiting restrictions
along Smallbrook Road, Shaw.

The proposal was promoted to address the obstructive parking
that regularly took place along Smallbrook Road, which
prevented access into the nearby Duchess Street Industrial
Estate for the larger delivery vehicles. However, many of the
residents along the route relied on the highway for parking and
as the proposal would reduce the available on-street parking,
objections had been received. The objectors had requested that
changes were made to the operation of the industrial estate,
which would result in the HGV drivers using a different route to
access the industrial premises and would remove the need for
additional double yellow lines to be introduced along Smallbrook
Road.

The proposal had been approved under delegated powers on
12t January 2022 and Sumﬁ%{ﬁ@“l advertised. Three letters of



objections had been received. The basis of the objections was

that there was very little parking options within the high parking

demand area. The road was not suitable to deal with industrial

traffic and the proposal only benefited vehicles visiting the Oldham
industrial area. Council

In light of the objections, a ‘track run’ analysis had been
undertaken of both an articulated vehicle turning left into
Duchess Street and a fire engine travelling straight through to
Woodend. Both required the removal of parking from one side of
the road. There was however an area of Smallbrook Road
where the road widens slightly on approach to the park; at this
point the vehicles did not need to utilise the road space, and
parking could take place. It was therefore

felt that the proposal could be amended, with this length of
carriageway removed from the proposal to allow on street
parking to continue.

Options considered:

Option 1: Introduce the restrictions as advertised

Option 2: Do not introduce the restrictions and allow the
obstructive parking to continue

Option 3: Slightly amend the advertised proposal and allow a
short length of parking to remain

RESOLVED that, as per the recommendation, the proposed
restrictions be introduced as an Experimental Order and
amended to allow a short length of parking to remain.

The meeting started at 5.30 pm and ended at 5.46 pm

Page 2



Agenda Iltem 6

©

Oldham

Council

Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order

S257 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 — Diversion of
Definitive Footpaths 8 & 176 Oldham, at Snipe Clough,
Oldham, and S53A — Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Portfolio Holder:
Councillor J Stretton, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods

Officer Contact: Gordon Anderson, Head of Highways &
Engineering

Report Author: Liam Kennedy, PRoW Officer

29" September 2022

Purpose of Report

To seek approval to the making of a Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map
and Statement Modification Order for Footpaths 8 & 176 Oldham as detailed in
the report.

Executive Summary

The Council has received an application from Sanderson Associates
(Consulting Engineers Limited acting as agent to OMBC (c/o Andrew Hall) to
facilitate the proposed development of the Northern Roots site Bike Hub off
Cherry Avenue, Oldham (land at Snipe Clough). Planning Ref:
FUL/348472/22 (granted 25" August 2022).

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Council make a Public Path Diversion and
Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order for the diversion of Footpaths

8 & 176 Oldham under Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 and section 53A of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as detailed in

Page 3



the report and officers be authorised to carry out the necessary procedures
with a view to confirming the Order in the event that no objections are made to
the Order.

TM2 PROW\TM2-253 14 September 2022

Page 4



TRO Panel 29" September 2022

Public Path Diversion and Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order

S257 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 - Diversion of Footpaths 8 & 176 Oldham,
at Snipe Clough, Oldham and S53A Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 Modification
of the Definitive Map and Statement

1

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Background

The application has been made by OMBC via their agent named above in relation
to the proposed development of the Northern Roots site (FUL/348472/22) for a
Bike Recreation Hub, including 2 bike track areas, ancillary service area and new
car park.

The Order-making and Confirming Authority are guided to authorise the diversion
of any footpath if they are satisfied that it is necessary to do so in order for the
development to be carried out in accordance with the granted planning permission.

Proposal

The route of Footpath 8 Oldham is shown on the attached plan (764/A4/234/1).
The path commences off Cherry Avenue, Oldham (GR SD94132 03250)
proceeding West to terminate at (GR SD94012 03265). The description of the
current route is given in Schedule 1.

The diverted route is also shown on the plan and follows points A-C-B. The
description of the diverted route is given in Schedule 2.

The route of Footpath 176 Oldham is shown on the attached plan (764/234/1). The
path commences off Cherry Avenue, Oldham (GR SD94139 03263) proceeding
North terminating slightly East of Matthew Close. The description of the current
route is given in Schedule 1.

The diverted route is also shown on the plan and follows points D-F-G-E. The
description of the diverted route is given in Schedule 2.

The existing alignment of the footpaths would be directly affected by the
development. On its current alignment FP176 Oldham would be severed by the
bike track and FP8 Oldham would cross the parking area, which has safety
implications for users of the footpath. Therefore diversions would be required in
order to implement the granted planning application.

The required highway signage, from the metallised road and the way markers
along the route will be paid for by the applicant.

If the order is confirmed it will be necessary to modify the Definitive Map and
Statement for Footpaths 8 & 176 Oldham. The Council have an obligation to

TM2 PROW\TM2-253 14 September 2022

Page 5



continuously review the Map and Statement. The Public Rights of Way (Combined
Orders) (England) Regulations 2008 allow the Order-making Authority to make a
Combined Order for a diversion proposal and Definitive Map and Statement
Modification. In light of the above it is considered that this is appropriate in this case.
The current wording for the Definitive Statement is given in Schedule 3 and the
amended wording is given in Schedule 4.

TM2 PROW\TM2-253 14 September 2022

Page 6



ORDNANCE SURVEY LICENCE: © Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey licence 0100019668

394000

403400

ngo

_

1394050

Al Weother Pitct

Proposed Diverted

Proposed Diverted

Existing Footpath

KEY

Route: (A-C-B)

Route: (D-F-G-E)

Definitive Footpath 8 Oldham (Part): (A-B)

Definitive Footpath 176 Oldham (Part): (D-E)

N

’ 0 \ Al

N\

Rev Revision details

By

[Chk.

Date

JAp.

©

Oldham MBC

Title

Izhenl
Project

Proposed Bike Hub, Cherry Avenue, Oldham

s119 Highways Act 1980

Diversion of Public Highway Combined Order
iversion of Public
Footpath 6 (fham (part) and Footpath 176

Wildlife and thar(n (Ec?n)Aa?qgm S53(2)
ildlife and Countryside Aci
Oldham S R v Modfiegtion of e Definiive Map ané

Council 07/22 information Statement
Pliie and Ecericilc Gramith Checked by Date |Scale al Ad size TAWING NO. T |

LK 07/22
HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING v by Dare 111250 764/A4/234/1
Henshaw House, Cheapside, Oldham OL1 1NY S
CPROV\PROW Oersionip 8 & 176 Oldhamip 8 & 176 Olaham.dgn

TM2 PROW\TM2-253

14 September 2022

Page

v



ORDNANCE SURVEY LICENCE: © Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey licence 0100019668

a

Aliotment
Gordens

4050
o
394200

403400 s

Existing definitive PRo

Cba_tht connect into
Kisting trodden roite”

sting trodden
path retained

| AUl Weother Pitch

sting galte retained Wia ™ N
1 T : e .
403250/6‘3/ 5 OLDH 8 \°e % =

QO
Existing definitive PRpW

OLDH 8 ’etained o
)

&)

Q

=]

KEY

—— Definitive Footpath 8 Oldham (Part): (A-B)
— = Proposed Diverted Route: (A-C-B)

—— Definitive Footpath 176 Oldham (Part): (D-E)
— = Proposed Diverted Route: (D-F-G-E)

—— Existing Footpath
N T AN A NNV
Rev| Revision details By |ChkJApp) Date
Client Title
l_ : St NBE Diversion of Public Highway Combined Order
Froject $119 Highways Act 1980 Diversion of Public
Footpath 6 Oldham (part) and Footpath 176
Proposed Bike Hub, Cherry Avenue, Oldham o Idham (Part) and
Oldh Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 85382)
am S R v Modification of the Definitive Map an
Council RW 07122 information Statement
Place and Economic Growth Checked E)},( %a;lezz Scale at A4 size rawing NO. | G
HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING Aprroved by Bate 1:1250 764/A4/234/1
Henshaw House, Cheapside, Oldham OL1 1NY . )
CPROV\PROW Oersionip 8 & 176 Oldhamip 8 & 176 Olaham.dgn

TM2 PROW\TM2-253 14 September 2022

Page 8



Schedule 1
Description of Existing Footpath Routes — Drawing 764/A4/234/1

Existing FP 8 Oldham commences off Cherry Avenue, Oldham (GR SD94132 03250)
proceeding West for a distance of approximately 73 metres to terminate at (GR SD94012
03265).

Existing FP 176 Oldham commences off Cherry Avenue, Oldham at (GR SD94139 03263)
following a northern route for approximately 460m to terminate slightly East of Matthew
Close at (GR SD94104 03592).

Schedule 2
Description of Proposed Diverted Footpath Routes — Drawing 764/A4/234/1

Footpath 8 Oldham commences off Cherry Avenue, Oldham (GR SD94132 03250) and
proceeds in a slightly West-North-Westerly heading for a distance of approximately 29m to
Point A (GR SD94109 03254) then heads directly West for a distance of approximately 24m
to Point C (GR SD94086 03247) then heading North for a distance of approximately 12m to
Point B (GR SD94083 03259) then continuing in a West-North-Westerly heading for a
distance of approximately 47m to this section of Footpath 8 Oldham’s termination point at
(GR SD94012 03265) for a total distance of 112m or thereabouts. This route follows the
proposed layout of the development in the Developments plan shown above

Footpath 176 Oldham commences off Cherry Avenue, Oldham (GR SD94139 03263) and
proceeds North for a distance of approximately 65m to Point D (GR SD94120 03325) then
proceeds West for a distance of approximately 40m to Point F (GR SD94081 03315) where
the route heads East and then North between the bike wash/staff parking area & Cycle Track
for a distance of approximately 43m to Point G (GR SD94079 03349) then heading East-
North-East for a distance of approximately 49m to Point E (GR SD94121 03373), finally
proceeding North for a distance of approximately 347m to terminate slightly East of Matthew
Close at (GR SD94104 03592) for a total distance of 544m or thereabouts. This route follows
the proposed layout of the development in the Developments plan shown above.

TM2 PROW\TM2-253 14 September 2022

Page 9



Schedule 3

Current Definitive Statement

District and Page Status Length Description Comments
page number Number
Oldham 10 Footpath 530 The path Public path
Footpath 8 metres begins at extinguishment
Cherry Avenue order 1976

clough where
it crosses the
stream by
means of
stepping
stones. From
here it runs
steeply up the
side of the
clough until it
crosses Path 1
and the
disused
railway line.
The path is
cinder
surfaced for a
few yards off
Cherry Avenue
and afterwards
becomes a
worn grass
track. Beyond
the footbridge
the worn grass
track runs
along the
northern
boundary
fence of Fitton
Hill County
Infant School
to North Croft
at Fitton Hill.

The path

on Alt Estate confirmation
and runs down | date 20/4/77

the side of the | operative date
3/5/77 DMMO

part deleted
(1977 order)

TM2 PROW\TM2-253

14 September 2022

Page 10



Oldham
Footpath 176

10

Footpath 460

metres

becomes more

begins at
Cherry Avenue
on Alt Estate
and proceeds
in a easterly
direction
across the
reclamation
site at
Deanshot
Clough. The
path
recommences
on the road
crossing the
disused
railway then
runs along the
northern
boundary
fence at Fitton
Hill Infants to
North Croft.

From Warren
Lane in a SS.
Easterly
direction
passes to the
east of St.
Albans School.
Path is poorly
defined past
the school.
Path crosses
waste ground
and adventure
playground to
the east of
allotment
gardens and

defined
through the
clough to

Cherry

Avenue.

TM2 PROW\TM2-253

14 September 2022

Page 11




Schedule 4

Modification of Definitive Statement

District and Page

Status Length | Description Comments
page number | Number
Oldham 10 Footpath | 574 Footpath commences off
Footpath 8 metres | Cherry Avenue, Oldham

(GR SD94132 03250) and
proceeds in a slightly
West-North-Westerly
heading for a distance of
approximately 29m to (GR
SD94109 03254) then
heads directly West for a
distance of approximately
24m to (GR SD94086
03247) then heading North
for a distance of
approximately 12m to (GR
SD94083 03259) then
continuing in a West-
North-Westerly heading for
a distance of
approximately 47m to this
section of Footpath 8
Oldham’s termination point
at (GR SD94012 03265).
Route continues further
West at (GR SD93937
03256) through Snipe
Clough continuing in a
generally Westerly
direction to join North
Oldham 10 Footpath | 544 | Croft, Fitton Hill at (GR
Footpath 176 metres | SD93502 03192).

Footpath commences off
Cherry Avenue, Oldham
(GR SD94139 03263) and
proceeds North for a
distance of approximately
65m to (GR SD94120
03325) then proceeds
West for a distance of
approximately 40m to (GR
SD94081 03315) where

TM2 PROW\TM2-253 14 September 2022

10

Page 12



the route heads East and
then North between the
bike wash/staff parking
area & Cycle Track for a
distance of approximately
43m to (GR SD94079
03349) then heading East-
North-East for a distance
of approximately 49m to
(GR SD94121 03373),
finally proceeding North for
a distance of
approximately 347m to
terminate slightly East of
Matthew Close at (GR
SD94104 03592).

3 Options/Alternatives

3.1 Option 1: To approve the recommendation

3.2 Option 2: Not to approve the recommendation

4 Preferred Option

4.1 The Preferred option is to approve Option 1. This will enable continued usage of
the PRoW network whilst simultaneously facilitating the construction and
development of the site to provide a community based facility for the residents of
the Borough.

5 Informal Consultation

5.1 Parish Council
Not applicable

5.2 Footpath Societies
The Ramblers Association, Peak & Northern Footpath Society & Wednesday
Walkers were consulted on the proposal.
Suggestions were made in relation to the part extinguishment of the section of
Footpath 8, Oldham that leads off Cherry Avenue.
Issues relating to the potential of increased usage of bicycles on the Definitive
Footpaths in the area due to the nature of the development were also raised.
Disability Discrimination Act compliant kissing gate installation was explored with
the developer but deemed not practical due to the routes not being fenced in.

TM2 PROW\TM2-253 14 September 2022

11

Page 13



5.3

5.4

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10

10.1

Therefore there would be no deterrent as cyclists would simply cycle around the
structure.

Ward Councillors
None received.

Landowners
The only affected landowner is the applicant.

Financial Implications

The application is made on behalf of OMBC via their agent Sanderson Associates
(Consulting Engineers Limited). Due to the application being internal the
advertising and notice posting fees will be the only payable costs to be funded via
Andrew Hall.

Legal Services Comments

Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 enables the Council to
authorise the stopping up or diversion of any footpath or bridleway if it is satisfied
that it is necessary to stop up or divert the footpath or bridleway in order to enable
development to be carried out in accordance with planning permission granted
under the Act. In the event of objections, the application will be referred to the
Secretary of State who must be satisfied that it is necessary to stop up or divert the
footpath or bridleway and who has a discretion as to whether to confirm the
stopping up/diversion. In the exercise of that discretion the Secretary of State is
obliged to take into account any significant disadvantages or losses flowing directly
from the stopping up/diversion which have been raised and must also take into
account any countervailing advantages to the public, along with the planning
benefits and the degree of importance attached to the development. He must then
decide whether any such disadvantages or losses are of such significance or
seriousness that he should refuse to confirm the stopping up/diversion. (A Evans)

Co-operative Agenda

Not applicable.

Human Resources Comments
None.

Risk Assessments

None

TM2 PROW\TM2-253 14 September 2022

Page 14 .



11

IT Implications

11.1  None.

12 Property Implications

12.1  None.

13 Procurement Implications

13.1 None.

14 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications

141  None.

15 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications

15.1 None.

16 Equality Impact Assessment Completed?

16.1 Not applicable.

17 Key Decision

17.1 No.

18 Key Decision Reference

18.1 Not applicable.

19 Background Papers

19.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in
accordance with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act
1972. It does not include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential
information as defined by the Act :
None.

20 Appendices

20.1  Appendix 1 (developers footpath construction detail for diverted sections)

TM2 PROW\TM2-253 14 September 2022

13

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 S257 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 – Diversion of Definitive Footpaths 8 & 176 Oldham, at Snipe Clough, Oldham, and S53A – Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

